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REGULAR COUNCIL 
 
TO: Mayor & Council DATE: March 6, 2012 
 
FROM: General Manager, Finance & Technology 

General Manager, Planning & Development 
FILE: 2320-01 

 
SUBJECT: Purchase of Natural Gas for Civic Facilities 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance & Technology Department and the Planning and Development Department 
recommend that Council: 

1. approve the execution of a contract by the appropriate City officials with Cascadia Energy 
Ltd. (“Cascadia”) for the supply of natural gas for the civic facilities listed in Appendix “A” 
to this report for a term beginning on April 1, 2o12 and ending on October 31, 2012 at a 
price of $2.43 per GJ plus HST; and 

2. instruct staff to provide by the end of July 2012 a further report to Council complete with 
recommendations regarding the purchase of natural gas for the subject civic facilities 
commencing on November 1, 2o12. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City currently purchases its natural gas from FortisBC (“Fortis”).  The City has not previously 
used the services of an independent marketer to obtain natural gas; however, many local 
governments in the GVRD purchase their natural gas from independent gas marketers at reduced 
rates.  During the summer of 2011, staff undertook a study of the merits of purchasing natural gas 
from such an entity and concluded that the City could benefit by way of significant savings by 
purchasing natural gas through an independent marketer of this commodity. 
 
Request for Expression of Interest Process and Results 
 
In view of the above-referenced conclusion, during September 2011 a Request for Expressions of 
Interest and Statements of Qualification (RFEOI/SOQ) No. 1220-050-2011-019 was issued by the 
City with view to determining the market interest in supplying natural gas for the City’s civic 
facilities.  Information related to the RFEOI/SOQ was posted on the City website and on the BC 
Bid website.   
 
Pricing information provided by the proponents indicated that individual buildings that consume 
a minimum of 2,000 GJ annually are suitable candidates for this alternate means of acquiring 
natural gas.  For facilities consuming smaller quantities, the analysis indicates that the City should 
continue to purchase natural gas for these facilities from Fortis BC.  A list of City facilities that 
consume a minimum of 2,000 GJ annually is listed in Appendix “A”.   
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In follow-up to the above process, each of the respondents was asked by staff to respond to the 
following question: 

“Assume that today, October 27th, you are entering into a one-year agreement to supply the City 
of Surrey with the natural gas for its large commercial and general firm service sites at a fixed 
price per GJ: 

1. Would the fixed price apply to all natural gas consumed, or would it instead apply to a 
fixed volume?; and 

2. What would be the fixed price you could offer?” 

The response to the questions from each of the proponents who responded, is documented in 
Appendix “B” with the responses ranked in order of price.  Staff has concluded that Cascadia, 
which 0ffered a price of $3.68 per GJ without any minimum or maximum volume limitations, 
represents the best value for the City.  Appendix “C” provides additional details in this regard.  
Had the City chosen to switch suppliers at the end of October 2011, the estimated savings would 
have been $86,557 for the 12 month period ending October 31, 2012. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
From October 2011 to February 2012 natural gas commodity prices decreased.  The Fortis 
midstream, delivery, and demand rates increased slightly on January 1, 2012.  On February 20, 
2012, City staff asked for and received up-to-date pricing information from Cascadia for a 
potential seven-month contract beginning April 1, 2012.  Cascadia responded with a rate of $2.43 
per GJ.  At this rate the City could save a total of approximately $95,182 over a seven-month period 
in comparison to the current approach to acquiring natural gas through Fortis BC.  Appendix “D” 
provides additional details in this regard. 
 
Based on information provided by Cascadia, the City may cancel its agreement to purchase gas 
from Cascadia by giving 60 days notice in advance of October 31st.  The Cascadia contract can be 
terminated on October 31st of any year.  Similarly, to re-engage Fortis BC as the supplier of gas for 
any facility, the City must give Fortis BC 60 days notice, which can be provided at any time during 
the year. 
 
To purchase gas from Cascadia or any other independent gas supplier, the City must pay Fortis a 
one-time charge to upgrade the gas meter at each facility.  Each meter costs approximately $600 
to supply and install.  Cascadia has agreed to rebate the City for such expense at a rate of $25 per 
meter per month during the first two years of the contract.  This would result in a full recovery of 
the cost of each meter over the two-year period. 
 
Future Optional Courses of Action for the City: 
 
If the City enters into a contract with Cascadia for the period of April 1, 2012 to October 31, 2012, 
the City will retain the option to: 

 Extend the contract with Cascadia for a new 12 month term  commencing on November 1, 
2012; or 

 Terminate the contract at October 31, 2012 subject to providing written notice to both 
Fortis BC and Cascadia 60 days in advance of October 31, 2012, which will allow the City to 
recommence purchasing gas from Fortis BC; or 

 Undertake another RFEOI/SOQ process with respect to purchasing natural gas from an 
independent supplier in advance of the above-referenced 60 day notice period. 
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CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the above discussion, it is recommended that Council: 
 

 approve the execution of a contract by the appropriate City officials with Cascadia for the 
supply of natural gas for the civic facilities listed in Appendix “A” to this report for a term 
beginning on April 1, 2o12 and ending on October 31, 2012 at a price of $2.43 per GJ plus 
HST; and 

 

 instruct staff to provide by the end of July 2012 a further report to Council complete with 
recommendations regarding the purchase of natural gas for the subject civic facilities 
commencing on November 1, 2o12. 

 
 
 
 
Vivienne Wilke     
General Manager 
Finance & Technology 

Jean Lamontagne 
General Manager 
Planning & Development 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
Appendix “A” Civic Facilities to be Covered by Agreement 
Appendix “B” Responses Received to RFEOI/SOQ 
Appendix “C” Financial Analysis: FortisBC vs. Cascadia Energy (November 2011 – October 2012) 
Appendix “D” Financial Analysis: FortisBC vs Cascadia Energy (April 2012 – October 2012) 
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Appendix A 
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Appendix B 
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Appendix C 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
November, 2011 to October, 2012 
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Appendix “D” 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
April, 2012 to October, 2012 

 
 

 


